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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Transhealth Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Transhealth Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private Limited, on
the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended);

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none of the directors is dlsquallfted as.on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act — 0 \
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f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in, paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure |l wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company does not have any pending litigation(s) which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024.;

i. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024; and

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

of Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2024. 2o GONIn
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vi. As stated in note 42 to the financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on
01 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, the
audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any
direct data changes. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

[ .-\ . ) _-' .'i
Kartik Gogia N pecons
Partner
Membership No.: 512371
UDIN: 24512371BKFEYZ4739

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment ,capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-
of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over
a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. However, no physical verification was carried out by the management of the Company
during the year, and we are therefore unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any, which could have
arisen on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in Note 4 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as
compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 17 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets. The quarterly
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such
statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods, which
were not subject to audit.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the Company
has provided guarantee to Company during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided guarantee to Others during the year as per details given below:

(in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Guarantees

Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year to Holding Company:

Integris Health Private Limited 11,500.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases:

Integris Health Private Limited 11,500.00

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the guarantees provided

are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at the

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(b

(viii)

—

beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees provided by it . Further,
the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 in respect of loans and
section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products / business activities. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in
subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received from banks
and representation received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a)The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
(fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the

Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the

management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the

(xii)

(xiil)

(xiv)

(xv)
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management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of
the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and consequently,
does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Transhealth Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(xvi)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any Core Investment Company (CIC).

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end
of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Kartik Gogia

Partner

Membership No.: 512371
UDIN: 24512371BKFEYZ4739

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Transhealth Private
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Annexure Il

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Transhealth Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAIl prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Transhealth  Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. .

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

-

Kartik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

UDIN: 24512371BKFEYZ4739

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024



Transhealth Private Limited
Balance Shaet as at 31 March 2024
CIN; U23309DL2020PTC 364238

{All amounis in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As al As at
Particulars Notes 31 march 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-curreni assats
Property, planl and equipmant 4 433541 3,764.88
Caphal work-in-progress 44 - -
Right-of-use assels 4c 269.78 296.62
Other Intangible assats 4B 1.53 1.46
Financial asseals
1} Othar financlal assels 1) 11743 215.25
Mon-current tax assets (ned} -] - 1217
Other non-cusren assels 7 1,272.78 ©648.50
Total non-currant assets 5,096.93 4,938.58
Cumrent assels
Inventories [:] 2,325.16 ae4.12
Financial assets
i Trade receivablas. 9 1,863.36 937,98
iy Cagh and cash equivalenls 10 59.29 180.73
iWy Other bank balances 11 900.00 486.94
iv} Loans 12 054 1.15
¥) Qther financial assels 13 542.66 16.96
Cther current aszels 14 350.98 227.87
Total current assets 6,051.09 _27T14.76
Total assels 12,048.02 7,653.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capilal 15 300.00 300.00
Other aquity 16 1,054.79 487.54
Total equity 1,354.79 787.54
Liablftes
Non-curvent llabilities
Financis labities
i} Borowings 17 5,586.44 524516
i) Laags liablites 8 - 53.27
Provisions 19 23.91 10.44
Dedamred tax Bablilies (net) N 150.22 9747
Total nen-currant llabliities _8,780.87 5,406.34
Gurrent liabllitles
Financial llabiities
i) Boyrowings 17 1,901,32 B801.64
W) Lease liabililies 18 19.99 2598
i) Trade payables 20
- Total onlstanding dues of mkro anlerprises and small enterprises; and 11.58 18.62
- Total oulstanding dues of credilors other than micro enlenpises and small enterprises 58229 31983
iv) Other financlal Nabilitles 21 389.19 260,55
Frovislons 19 0.42 .13
Current tax llabillias {net} 22 15.19 -
Other current liabillles 23 2,004.68 &kl
Total current {lablllifes 4,924.66 1,450.46
Total equity and llabllitles 12,048.02 7,653.34
S y of malerial ac L Wi 3

The summary of materal aocouvntrhg polcles and other explanal

This is the Balance Shesl refemed to in our report of aven dale.

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
Chartered Accoumanls
Firm Ragistration No.: 001076N/N500013

¥

Gogla
rinar
Membership No.: 512371

Place: New Dehi
Date; 30 Seplamber 2024

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Transhealth Private Limited

éﬂmﬂ

indranil
Elirectar

DIN Mumber: 06692498

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Dakhl
Date: 30 September 2024

Mukher)

| part of these financial stalemants.




Transhealth Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year anded 31 March 2024

CIN: U33309DL2020PTCI64238

(AN amounts i Rs.lakhs, unlass otherwise siated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars Notes 31 March 2024 31 Warch 2023
Revenue
Revenue from operalions 24 3,763.97 201682
Olher income 26 127.55 158.66
Tolal revenue 3,891.52 217548
Expansss
Cost of materials consumed 26A 163641 463.01
Changes in i tas of finkshed goods and work-in-progress 66 {341.14) (49.50)
Employae banefils expenss 27 G36.84 1.1
Finance cosls 28 614,29 358.51
Depreciation and amortisation axp 29 207.69 105.24
Olher expenses i) 311.89 190.40
Talal expensas 3,144.98 1,438.77
Profit before tax T46.54 736,71
Tax axpanse M
Cumrent tax 7414 -
Adjustment of tax relaling lo eadler years 39,83 -
Deferred lax 60.75 123.33
Total tax axpenses 174.72 123.33
Nat Profit for the year 571.82 513.38
Olher comprehensivé Income
{i) ltems that will not be reclassifled to prof or koss
Re-measuremsnls of the defined benefil plans {4.58) {0.45)
Income tax relaling lo abave item G709 -
(W} Iterns thal will be reclassified to profit of loss - .
Total comprehensive Income for the parlod, net of tax 566,00 §12.93
Earning per equity sharg {Rs. 10 per share} 32
Basle {Rs.} 18.93 2043
Diuted (Rs.) 18.93 2043
a ¥ of material ing polici . a
The y of ial ting poficies and other ara an iniegral par of these financlal statemants,

This is the Statemant of Profil and Loss referred Lo in our report of evan dale

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP

Chartered Accounlants

Firm RegisUalicn No.: 001078NN500013
L

ogla
er
smbership Mo.: 512371

Place: Maw Deihl
Dals: 30 Seplember 2024

For and on behak of Board of Directors of

Tr7hoalth Private Limited

Indranil Mukherjee
Diractor -
DIN Number: 06692698

Place: Mew Dohi
Date: 30 September 2024




Transhealth Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U333090L2020PTC 64238

‘AH amounts in INR .'akgé unfass ofherwise slated)

Forthayearended  For the year andad

Particulers 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
A, Cash flows from aperating aclivilles
Profit hefors tax 74654 7361
Ad|ustments for:
Deprecislion and amortisation enp 28769 129.07
Liabiktles wrilen back {6.43}
Inerest income 66,17} {20.66)
Unrealized foreign exchangs gain (nel) (26.36} -
Finance costs 614.28 7822
Oparating profit bafore warking caplial changes 1.549.58 1,223.34
Mavement In working capltal
{increasa) in invenlories (1,441.03) (767.93)
I ) in trade receivab) [244.75) {718.49)
Dacrease inloans 051 -
(incraace} In other azsels (457.30) (444.98)
Increase In rade payablas 254,72 264.91
Increase in other Kabillies 2,050,909 38.40
Increase in provistons 9.18 .50
Cash flow from/ (used In} operating activitles 1,021,838 {395.2%)
Income tax pakd {net} {410.55)} (11,98}
Nel cash from/ {used [n) operating activitles A 910.93 40713}
B, Cash flows from Investing activitias
Purchase of property, plani and squipment and capital work In progress {including capital ad ) {1,124.40) {1,823.06)
Wleresi recalvad 3947 591
Investmant in bank daposits {(net) {835.24) (49275}
Net cash used n investing activitlas B8 11,920.171 (2,209.80)
€. Cash Mow ifrom financing activilles
Procasds from non-curreni bomowings 806.01 3.881.1
Payriarni of loase labilles (inchding interest amounilg to Rs. 3.74 takhs) (60.00) -
Repayment of non-cument barowings (207.72) {1,437.06)
Procaeds from short term bomowings (ned) 1,042,668 ez
Finance cos| pakt (493.17) (262.78)
Net cash generated fram financing activitbes 4 B87.00 YR
Net decreass in cash and cash squivalents {A+B+C) {121.44) {145.33)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 180.73 326.08
Cloaslng cash and cash equivalents 58,29 180.73
Cash and cash equlvalents Include (rafer note 10}
Balances with banks in currant accounts 69.26 1680.73
Cash and bank balances 58,28 1680.73
L —
Notes:
{a) The above Cash Flow Staleman has been prepared under the ‘indirect Method® as sed oulin the (ndlan A ting Standard (Ind AS 7} 'S4 of Gash Flow’,
{0} Figures reprazenied in byackets are cash culllows.
Changes in Jlablliites arising from financing activithes:
Aa al 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 Cash flows Interast axpanss 31 March 2024
Bomowings (non-curent and current) {refer note 17) 6,046.80 144097 - 7.487.76
Leass llabiies 79.25 {60.00) 073 19.98
Total liabikties for financing activities 6,126.05% 1,380,987 473 7,507.74
As at 31 March 2023
1 April 2022 Cash flows Interest sxpensef 31 March 2022
paymont_
Barmwings {non-curent and current] (refar nole 17] 3,224.31 4,262 53 {1437.04} 8,044.79
Leasw liabifilles 7441 = 4.84 7925
Total liabliitiea for financing activitiey 329572 4,262,353 1,432.20 §126.04
The y of ial ting policies and other explanalory information are an integrat part of these financial statements.
This is the Stalement of Cash Flow rafarred 1o in our rapoe of aven dale.
For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounlanis Tranghealth Private Limited

Flm Reglsiration Mo.: 001076NMNG00013

L]

Gogla

Membarship No.:512371

Placa; New Dol
Date: 30 Seplember 2024

s |

Wndranll Mukherje
Diacior ’
DIN Number: 05682

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 Seplembar 2024



Transhealth Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U333030L2020PTC 364238

(Al amounis in INR ialhs, unless olherwise staled)

A. Equity share capital
Parliculars Az at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Batance at |he beginning of the year 300.00 300.00
Issued durng the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 300.00 300.00
B. Othir squity
Attribulable to the squity holders
Ratalned earnings
Particulars Qther agulty
Other
Ratalned comprehensive
eamings
Incomae

Balancs as at 1 Aprll 2022 (125.39) -
Addiless:
Profit for the year 613.38 -
Olher comprehensive Income {0.45)
Balance as al 31 March 2023 4487.99 {0.45)
Profil for the year 571.862
Qlher comprahensive income — (d4.58)
Balancs at the end of the year 1,059.81 15.03} 1,054.79 |
The y of ial g policies and other expk infe tion are an integral part of Ihesa fnancial statements.
Thiz is the Sialement of Changes in Equity relerted 1o n ouupotlol’evendale
For Walkar Chandlok & Co LLP For and on behal of Board of Direciors of
Charlered Accountaris Tianshealth Private I.Itnlt

Mo.: 001076N/N500013

Placa: New Dehi
Date: 30 September 2024

ndranll Muklm']ee
Director
DIN Number; 0&592388

Kewal shan Ji
Ghisf Financial Officer

Place: New Dekhi
Date: 30 September 2024



a)

Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

Company overview

Transhealth Private Limited {the ‘Company’), having Corporate Identification Number (CIN’)
U33309DL2020PTC364238 is a private company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 2 June 2020. The
registered address of the Company is 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New
Delhi -110060. The objective of the Company is to be engaged in the business of manufacturing of PTCA
Balloon Catheter, including Stent delivery system.

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS’) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA’) under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR’) {its functional and presentation currency) and
all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs or decimals thereof, except where otherwise indicated. Adding
the individual figures may therefore not always result in the exact total given.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 September 2024.

{ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

(iil} Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Division Il of Schedule Ill of the Act. The Company has identified twelve months as
its operating cycle.

Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised as below:

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow fo the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance cosls are
recognised in statement of profit and loss. :

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method based
on estimated useful life of the asset after considering the residual value as set out in Schedule Il to the Act
referred above.
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c)

Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’'d) :

Asset class Useful life
Building 60 years
Plant & Equipment 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Depreciation is caleulated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the
asset is sold or disposed. :

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognifion

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant component initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress are stated at cost net of impairment loss, if any. Assets in the course of construction
are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment. Costs (net of income) associated with the commissioning of the asset, including the
expenditure incurred on trial runs {net of trial run receipts), are capitalised up to the date asset is ready for its
intended use,

Expenses incurred relating to project during the project under development stage prior to its intended use, are
considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under “Capital work in progress”.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue is measured net of rebates, discounts
and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each component of the revenue transaction
as set out below.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when goods are transferred for a price, all significant risk and rewards
of the ownership have been transferred to the customer, no effective control is retained with respect to goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership, no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of consideration and collectability of amount is reasonably assured. The Company considers the terms
of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

A receivable is recognised by the Company when the contral is transferred as this is the case of pointin time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. When either
party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the payment.

interest income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR) i.e., the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Export Incentives

Revenue in respect of export incentives is rec right to receive the same is established.
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Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Right of use assets and lease liabllities

" A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying

asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases :

The Company entered into leasing arrangements for land. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option
to extend/purchase etc.

i) Right of use assets

Recognition and initial measurement
At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

Subseguent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

ii) Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments
based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made
and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,
in respect of raw materials and stores and spares. Cost includes freight, taxes and duties and excludes duties
and taxes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving/ non-moving inventory is estimated and made by the management, wherever
necessary.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
except to the extent it recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax comprises the tax payable on taxable income for the year. Current tax is computed in accordance

with relevant tax regulations. The amount ofxg ent tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
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Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purpoeses and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based
on the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses
and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the assetf and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred
tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Provisions, contingent llabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material,

Contingent liability is disclosed for;

+ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

¢ Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made,

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain,
related asset is disclosed.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, efc. are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans
as under:

Defined contribution plan
The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund and pension scheme. The contribution
made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan :

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference
to the employee’s length of service and last drawn salary. The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position for defined benefit plans is the pre alue of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBQO} at the reporting
date. Management estimates the DBQGY) ith the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measur ibility/asset are included in other comprehensive income,
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Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 {(Cont'd)

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of
long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to
availed after one year from the balance sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation ctrrency

ltems included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have
been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on
the foreign currency amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at
the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.,

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost — A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met;

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prlnclpal
and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised when the cony
or the Company has transferred its rights to re

receive cash flows from the asset have expired
rom the asset.
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Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits with mature of more than 12 months has been classified as non-
current assets. '

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recoghised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred except for borrowing for
acquisition of qualifying assets, which are capitalised upto the date, the asset is ready for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« |n the principal market for the asset or liability; or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

the use of unchservable inputs.
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Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upen annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the
Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured
o re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied
in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the ievel of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Gompany applies expected credit loss ('ECL'} model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is provided for when there has heen a significant
increase in credit risk and then, factors historical trends and forward looking information, An impairment loss is
recognised either based on the 12 months’ probability of default or lifetime probability of default.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of such
receivables.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors who
makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing -performance of the
operating segments.




q)

Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policles and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a)

b}

c)

d)

a)

b)

c)

Significant management judgements

Recognitlon of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases — The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment, The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not fo exercise that option.
In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Impalrment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management
assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with industry and country in which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation (DBQ) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relaie to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utilisation of assets.




Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 {Cont'd)

New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2023, As part of the transition to Ind AS, the Company has also considered following amendments
{where relevant) in the preparation of its standalcne financial statements.

Ind AS - 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

Ind AS - 12 Income Taxes

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments,
the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax
liahility in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of
paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. The amendments had no impact on the
Company’s standalone financial statements.

Ind AS - 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s standalone
financial statements.

Ind AS - 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”"} vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to
Ind AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.




Transhealth Private Limited

Summary of materlal accounting policles and other explanatory informatlon for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: U33309DL2020PTC364238

{AN amounts in Rs. lakhs, uinless otherwise staled)

4, Property, plant and equipmant {PPE]

Partlculars Bullding  Plant and Furnlture and Office Computars Total
equipments fittings quipment:

Gross block

As at 1 April 2022 523.43 759,60 T4 18.51 12,49 1,351 47
Additions during the year 13.43 249272 28.82 8.01 4.59 2547.57
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 536,896 3,252.32 66.26 26.52 17.08 3,899.04
Additions during the year 112.63 681.54 17.06 209 10,13 830,43
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 549,49 3,933.83 83.32 35,61 27.21 4,729.47

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2022 13,08 73.68 3.00 1.26 1.52 32,54
Depreciation Charge for the year 16.57 72,64 3.07 3.65 459 101,62
Reversal on disposal - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 29,65 86,32 6.97 4.9 6.1 134,16
Depreciation Charga for the year 18.86 220.36 713 522 7.46 259.90
Raversal on dispasal - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 48,61 306.68 14.00 10.90 13.87 394.06
Nal block as at 31 March 2023 507.21 3,166.,00 59,39 261 10.67 3,764.98
Net block as at 31 March 2024 600.98 31,627.15 69.32 24.74 13.34 4,335.41
Nota:

1. The Gompany has not revalued properly, plant and equipmenis during the curmenl year and previous ysar.

2. Rafer Note 17{d) for delails of property plant and equipments pledged as security,

3. Addiions during the year ended 31 March 2024 includes trial run expenses for bringing new factory lo aperations amounling to Rs. 115 lakhs.
4. Amounl of capital commilments for acquisillon of PPE are disclosed in Nole 38,

4A, Capital work-in-progress

Movement of Capital work-In-progress

Partlculars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance - 169.16
Additions during Ihe year 115.00 1,359.70
Capitallsed during the year* (115.00) {1,548.96)

Closing balance

' Includes Interest cost capitalised amounting 1o Rs, Nil lakbs {31 March 2023: 9.72 lakhs), Cest of material consumed capitalised amaunting 1o Rs. 115 lakhs (31 March 2023
101.68 lakhs) and depreciatian amounting to Rs. Nil lakhs (31 March 2023: 23.84 lakhs}.

Notes :

{i) Delalls of expenses capltalised as a parl of capltal work in progress are disclosed in nole 264, 28 and 29,
{ii} There are no prajects whose complelion is overdue or has exceeded ils cosl comgpared Lo its griginal plan.
{iily Capital work in progress does not include any project where activity has been suspended.

4B. Intangible

Partlculars Softwara Tatal
Gross block

As at 1 April 2022 2,00 2,00
Additions during the year - -
Disposals - -
As at M March 2023 200 2,00
Addiltons during the year 1.32 1.32
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2024 3.32 3.32
A, lated amortlsat

As at 1 April 2022 [ Jr4) 0.
Amorlization Charge for the year 0.63 2.63
Reversal on dispasal - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.84 0.64
Amorlization Charge for the year 095 0.95
Raversal on disposal - -
As at 31 March 2024 1.7¢ 1.79
Garrylng amount {net)

Het block as at 31 March 2023 116 1.16

Net block as at 31 March 2024 1.53 4.53




Transhealth Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U33309DL2020PTC 364238

(Al amounis in Rs. lakhs, tnless atherwise sialed)

4C. Right of uge t

Partlculars Leasehold land Building Total
Gross block

As at 1 April 2022 269.80 71.53 341.33
Addillons dwing the year - - -
Disposals - - -
As at 3 March 2023 269.80 71.53 341,23
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2024 268,80 71.83 341.33
Accumulated depreciallon

As at 1 April 2022 3,96 13.01 17.87
Peprecialion charge for the yaar 3400 23.84 26.84
Reversal on disposat - - -
As al 31 March 2023 6.96 37,75 4.7
Depracialion charge for the year 3.00 23.84 26.84
Reversal on disposal - - -
As at 31 March 2024 9.96 51.59 ?‘I.i
Mel block as at 31 March 2023 262,84 33,76 206,52
Net block as at 31 March 2024 259,84 9.94 269,78

Note :

1, Refer note 18 for further details,
2. Refer Nole 17{d) for delails of proparly plani and equipments pledged as security.
3. In respacl of immovable properties thal have been laken on lease are duly execuled in favour of the Comparny

{This space infeniionally left blank)
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(Aﬂ amounls it Bs. lakhs, unless othenwise stalad)

and other expl

tory Information for the year ended 31 March 2024

E  Other Ananclal asssis non-currant

Partlculars Az at As al
34 March 2024 3 March 2023
Securily deposlls 543 375
Bank deposils with ariginal and remalning malurity more than 12 months* 112.00 211,50
117.43 215,25
* Inchdes pladged as securily wilh bankes (refar nole 174}
6. Non-curreni tax aseels {net)
Particulars Asal As at
31 Mavch 2024 31 March 2023
Prapald income taxes - 1247
- 12,17
7. _Olher non-currel asssls
Particulars Ag at As al
31 March 2024 M March 2023
Capital advances (refer nole 38) 601,95 - 305.48
Hatances wilh govemmant eutharilies. 070.83 342.02
1,272.78 548,50
8, Invantorles
Partleutars Az at Azl
31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Volued at lawer of cost or nat realisable value)
Raw malerials 1,485.23 785.34
Work-In-progress 1€3.26 0495
Finlshed gocds 276.87 68.84
232516 TTEEN
The cost of inventories recognisad as an expense during the year is dischsed in Hole 264 and 260.
8, Trade Ivab
Pariiculars As al Ag at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ungecwed, considered goad 1.863.36 937,98
u 1 Kered daubiful - . .
1,663,386 437.98
Less: Allowancas for expeciad credil lass - -
1,063.36 937,08
Trade racelvables agelng echeduls as at 31 March 2024 {Quistanding for follawing pariads from due date of paymant)
Less than 6 6 manths » 12 3 Mora than
Particulars Not Dus .y 1 year years yoars 3 yoars Total
Undlaputed trade recalvabl
considersd good 26822 1,333.87 260,27 - - - 1,863.36
which have signifcant increase i credil risk - - - - - - -
credll impaired - - - - - _ _
Tatal 259,22 1,330.87 260.27 - - - 1,0863.36
Trada recebvables agelng schaduls as at 31 March 2023 {Dutstanding for foHowl lods from dus dale of payman
Lasgg than & & months « -2 23 Mora than
Parilculars Mot e " | vear ars yoars 3 yoars Tatal
Undisputed trade Ivab}
conskderad good 102,61 825.52 .50 0,36 - - 937,43
which have significant increass In credit risk - - - - - - -
cradil impairad - - - - - - -
Toal 102.51 82552 8.59 0.3 - - $37.98
Hote

(i o \rade recehvables are due from directors or alher officers of the Company slthar severally of jolnily with any other persan. Trade recebiables are norHnlerest bearng.

(i} Nona of Irade Feables have signl i
and 31 March 2023,

10, Cash and cash squivalsnts

In credll risk or are credil inpalred. Funher, the Company doss nat have any dispuled Irada recalvables as on 31 March 2024

Partlcufars Az al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance with banics In currant accounts 59.29 18073
53.29 180,73
11, _Other bank halances
Partlculars Az at As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed deposits with ariginal maturily of mors than thres months bul lazs than twebve months * 900,00 466,94
0 466.84

* Pladgad against bank guarantes ssued Lo custom auharties for the purp

duly cerlificale {IGCR'). Refer note {6{d).

ol Expor F

lon Capltal Goods {EPCGY ficensa and Impen of Goods at Concessional Rals of

12. Loans
Partlculars Asal As al
31 March 2024 34 March 2023
Loan lo employaas® G4 1.15
64 115

“Na loans or advances are due from directors of (he Company or any of tham eilher savarally or jointly wilh any other persan. Further, no loans ar advances are due by finms ar

privala companles In which any direclor 12 a panney, a direclor or s mamber,




Transhealth Private Limited

v of materlal ting policles and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: U33309DL.2020PTCIG4230

(AI‘I amaunts i Rs, lakhs, unlass otherwise sfaied)

13,

14,

15, Eqully shara capital

{a)

(b}

{d) Datalis of equity shares hetd by the promaoterholding company as defined In the Compantes Act, 2013

]

Othar financlal assats

Partlculars As ol As ol
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interast accrued an bank depasits 42,68 15,968
Fited deposlis with ordginal malurity more than 12 monihs bul remalning malurily less than 12 manths. 500,00 -
5‘&% 15,96
Olher currant assels
Pariiculars As ot As 5l
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances lo vendors 24737 170,56
Export Intentive recaivabla 108.14 51.89
Propald expanses 4.47 5.30
SSSIQB 22707

Partlcatlore Asat As al

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authoriged
5,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each 500,00 B00,00
Issuad, subscribed and fully pald up
3,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each 300,00 300,40
R Jlatlon of bar of shares ling a1 the beginning and at the end of linanclal year:
Partloulars As at M March 2024 As at 31 March znés

Mo, af sharas Amount He, of sharas Amouwnt

Opening balance 30,00,000 300.00 30,00,000 300.00
Add: Equily sharas issuad during Lhe year - - - -
Clasing balance 40,09,000 000 40,00,000 300,00
Rights, pref and icil Hached to squity shares

The Company has only ane class of aquily sharas having face vakse of Rs, 10 paf shara, Each halder al aquity shares al |ha Company is enlitted Lo one vole per share, Tha
Company declores dividend in indian Rupees.

In the avenl of kquidation, the holders of aquily shares of the Company will ba enlilled 10 recatve [ning assels of the Comp after disidbullon of all p i Tha
diciribution will ba In p lon af 1ha numbar of aquily shares held by the sharsholdars,

Datalls af sharsholdar hokding more than 5% aquily share capltal¥,

Mame of the sharsholder —_As at 31 March 2024 Az at 31 March 2023

% of holding Mo. of shares % of halding Ho. of shares
Equity sharas of Rs. 10 each fully pald up hel by
Inlagris Healih Privata Limied (Halding Company’)* 100% 30,00,000 100% 30,00.000
* A5 per recards of the Comp Inchuding raglsier of shareh b qgarding bensficial Inlerasl, Ihe above shareholding represanis bath lagal and beneficlal cwnership of

shares.

As al 31 March 2024 As af 31 March 2023
Hame of the shareholder % of hojding Ho. of shares. % of holding Ho. of shares
Equity sharas of Rs. 10 each fully pakd up held by
Integris Health Privale Limiled {Holding Company’y* 100% 30,00,006 100% 0,006,000
* As per records of the G ncluding register of shareholder b garding baneficial inleresi, the above shareholding reprassnis both legal and baneficial ownershlp of
shares, :

Thare are no shares lesued p i Lo contracl withoul pay | balng hsed |n cash, allolled a5 fully pald up by way of bonus shares Issuss and baughl hack by Ihe Company
during the las! ve years from 1he reporting perad.

Thera has baen no changs In Ihe sharshokiing of the promolers during Lha year ended 3+ Mach 2024, Funher, P for the purp of Ihis disch means p tars ap
defined under sectlon 2(83) of Companies Act, 2013,

16, Oiher equity
Partlculars Asal As at
31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Ratained samings 1,050.81 487,99
Other comprehensiva Income 5,03 .45
Total 1,004, IL":E%
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(ANl amounis in A5 lakhs, uniess olherwise slated)

7.

{ #{a)

7R}

17ich

17{d)

18,

Borrowings
Parficulars Ag at 31 March 2024 Asz at 31 March 2023
Non t Current Non curranf Curreni
fUnsecured - af anroriised cosl)
Loan from Holding Company {rafer nole 17{b} balow) 4,590.04 - 3,964.00 -
{Secured - at amoriised cosi)
Term Loan (refer nole 17¢ & 174) 996.43 470.68 1.261.46 420,42
Gash credil Limil from bank {refer note 17{a) below) - £883.00 - 381,22
Foreign cumency working capilal loan (refier note i7{c) below) - 538.64 - -
5,506.44 1,904.32 B.245.16 801.64
The Company has been sancliones working capital Imil, forelgn cuency loan and term lean amounling le Rs. 1,500.00 Lakhs, Euro 6.00 lakhs and Rs. 2,119.00 lakhs respeciively
from CATi bank and working capital ImH of Rs. 200.00 Lakhs from ICICI bank. Further, oulstanding bafance as at 33 March 2024 Is amounling lo Rs. 893,00 Lakhs, Rs. 528.64 lakhs
and Rs. 1,475.19 Lakhs for working capital, forelgn curmency loanl and Lenm loan respectively from CITI bank and Rs. NIl for working capital kmit from ICICI bank. (39 March 2023:
Company has been sanctionad waorking capital lim of Rs. $02 lakhs wilh balance outstanding amounting 1o Rs. 281.22 Jakhs and sanclioned Term loan amounting to Rs. 2,149.00
lakhs from CIT) Bank with batance outstanding amounting to Rs. 1,651.50 lakhs, Furiher no working cepilal Iimil was sanctioned from ICIC] bank).
The Company has oblained unsecured loan from Integris Heallh Privale Limitad (Holding Company) as follows -
{i) Loan having sanclioned imit of Ra, 2,000 fakhs on 27 August 2020 al rate of 8% p.3 repayable over a peniod of 4 years,
{i) Loan having sanclionad kmit of Rs. 750 lakhs on 15 September 2021 al rale of 8% p.a repayable over a period of 4 years.
{ii) Loan having sanctioned limil of Rs. 760 lakns on 10 July 2022 a1 rale of 8% p.a repayable over a period of 4 yaars,
{iv) Loan having sanclioned fimil of Rs. 2,000 fakhs on 18 November 2022 at rete of 8% p.a rapayabls over a period of 4 years.
{¥) Loan having sanctioned limil of Rs, 600 lakhs on 01 July 2023 st rale of 8% p.a repayable over a padod of 4 years.
{v) Loan having snaction limik of Rs. 2,500 Jakhs on 03 Oclaber 2023 at rala of 8% repayable over a period of 4 years.
Terms and conditlons of term loans are as follows
Name of lender Rate of Interest | 1, o repayment | Date of maturlly As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
per annum
Non-current Current Non: ! Currant
Cill Bank® T15% 36 eiqual monthiy 30-Mar-27 120.00 60.00 180.00 80.00
Inslalmants of Rs. 500
Iakh lakhs each
Cili Bank* 8.50% az equal monthly 28-Ocl-26 352.44 22323 - -
inglaimanis of Rs. 1850
lakh takhs gach
Citi Bank* 8.50% 42 equal mnthiy} 25-5ep-27 262,52 113.01 - -
instalmenls of Rs. 9.41
|akh lakhs each
Clll Bank® 8.50% 48 aqual montily]  26-Feb-26 240,46 82.44 - -
instalments of Rs. 6.87|
ftakh lakhs each
ICICI Bank™ 40.36% 60 aqual monthly, 10-Nov-26 - - £89,13 220,92
Instalments of Rs. 18.44 !
lakh lakhs each
ICICI Bank*" .60% 50 equal monihiy 30-Sep-27 - - 260.35 7841
inslgments of Rs, 6.37
lakh lakhs each
ICIC] Bank** 9.60% 60 syual monthly, 04-Feb-28 - - 223.68 63.09
Inslatmenls of Rs. 6.2
lakh lakhs each
{Total ] 996.43 476.60 1,261.16 420,42
" Rats of Interest 15 Inked wilh T Bik+7.12% 0 casa of CIT) Bark, rale shown abuve is as on 31 March,2024.
+* Disbursement from ICICH bank having fix dale of malurity with various disbursement and number of Inslalment has been adpsted on the basis of lime expired,
Security of borrowings
Name of lender Terms of Securlty
Citi Bank 1) Excluslve charge on movable properly, plant and equipments of the Company by Larm loan proceeds.
2) Firsl pari passu charge on preseni and futwe trade raceivables of the Company.
|3} Corporate Guarantee of Integris Heallh Privale Limited and Translimina Therapeutics LLP.
ICICI Bank 1) Firsl pan passu charge on cumenl assel of the Company, exciusive chargs on movable properly, plant and equipment and lixed deposk.
2} Corporale Guarantes of infegris Heaith Private Limited and Translumina Therapeutics LLP.
Lease llabllifles
Partlculars Az at 31 March 2024 Asg at 31 March 2023
Longterm _ Short lerm Long term Shorl term
¢ ease Kablliliss - 9.99 63.27 2598
- 19.99 ___63.27 25.88

The Company has lease for faclory tand and office bullding which is reflecled as a right of use agsel and leass llability (except leaschold land). There ae no shor tenm leases of
vaflable lease payments. Tha lease of office bullding has a lem of 2 years and fease of land has a term of 90 years. The Company's obligations under ils leases are sacured by the
lessors Witle to the teased assels. The Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

e

e \{-\;;‘?\
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18. Lease llablilles {cont'd)
{1} Set oul bolow are the carrying amounts of fease labllitles and the movernants during the year:
Partleulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cpening balance 75.26 7441
Additions . .
Accretion of ntarast (refer nole 26} Q73 484
Payments {80.00} -
Closing balance 19.98 79.25
- Curanl 19.89 25.04
- Hon-cument ©.00 5327
{ll} The maturily analysis of fease lisbiiilies ere disclosed in note 36,
As at 31 March 2024:
Less lhan 1 year 1 to 6 years Mara than & years Total
Lease fiabiilies 20.00 - - 20.00
Interes! expense 0.0 0.01
Hel present values 19.99 - - 19.99
As at 31 March 2023:
Less than 1 year 1to Eyears  More than § years Total
Lease liabifities 26.73 53.20 - 80.00
Inleresl expence 0.74 0.01 0.78
Net prasent values 25.89 53.27 - 79.25
{ll} The effective rats of inleres for lzase llablity is 7% (31 March 2023 1 73) with maturily il 2024-25
(v} _The following are the amourts recognised in profil or loss:
Particulars For the perlod ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 ¥ March 2023
Depreciation expansa of righl-ol-use assets {refer nole 29) 26,84 26.84
interest expense on lease liablikles {refer nole 28) 0.74 4.84
Total amcunt recognisad In profit and foss 27.68 31,68
{v} Total cash outflow for leases for he year ended 31 March 2024 was Rs. 60 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. Nil lakhs )
13.  Provislons
Partlculars As at 31 March 2024 As al 31 March 2022
Long term Short term Long term Short term
Provislon for gratuily {refer note 23) 1963 0.04 -%7] 0.02
Pravision for I led ab 4.39 0.37 212 0.11
23.91 Uﬁ 1&44 0.13
20, Trade payab)
Partlcuwars As at As al
) 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Duss te micro anlarprises and small enlerprises {refer note 38) 11.50 18.62
Cutstanding dues 1o trade payablas other lhan micre enlerpises and small piises (MSME). 582.29 319.82
593.87 330,45
2ot e
Trada payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024:
Partlculars Qutstanding for following perods from dua dale of paymant
Unbllled Not due Less ihan 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years Moye than J years Total
Undisputed:
() MSME - .94 i.64 - - - 11.58
(i) Others 35.54 207.64 2339.00 013 - - 582.29
Total 36.54 217.68 340,63 0.13 . - 593.87
_— E— E—
Trade payables agelng schedule as on 31 March 2023:
Partlculars Qutstanding for following perods from due date of payment
Unbilied  Notdue | ooy than 1 year 1:2 years 23years ___ More than 3 years Total
Undlsputad:
(i) MSME - 15.28 3.34 - - - 18,82
(7) Others 28.26 89.88 185.21 16.48 - - 318,83
Total 28,26 105.16 188.56 16.48 - - 330.48
MNole:-
{i) The Company's exposue to financlal risk and Fair valie maasurement related o these financlal Insirumentts 15 disclased In Hole 35 and Nole 36.
{il) The Company does nol have any dispuled irada payables as on 31 March 2024 and 21 March 2023,
24, Other financlal dlabllitles - current
al amortised cost| ‘
Partlculars As at As at
31 March 2024 ¥ March 2023
Interast accrued but not dus on bomowings 340,31 221.01
Cradilors for capilal goods 281 -
Employee relaled payaties 46.07 27.09
Ohher payables - 42,45
389._19 260.56
22. Current lax liablilides {net)
Partlculars As al As at
31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Pravigion for laxation (ned of prepald \axes) 1519 -
16,19 -
23, Ofber current lfabllitlas
Parflculars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statulory dues payable 48.99 3271
Advance from customers 1,955.69 -
azyi

2,004.68
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24. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from cperations

Particulars

Fer the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year endad
31 March 2023

Operating Income;
Sale of producls

A} Reconchllation of Revanue from sale of products with the contracted price
Conlracled price

Less : trade discounls, volurme rebales, afc.

Revenue from conlract with customer

B} The disaggregaiion of revenue geographically.
Disaggregated Revanue

Within India

Ouiside India

C) Contract balances
Tha following 1able provides Informalion aboul receivablas and contract liablities from condract with customers:

3,763.97

2,016.82

3,763.97

2016.82

3,763,897 2,016,82
3,763.97 2,916.82
2,426.89 1,864,04
1,337.08 152.78
3,763.97 2,016.82

Contract Habliitles- Ad from
Description 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Openling balance - -
Addition during the year (refer note 23) 1,955,869 -
Ravanue racognised during tha year - -
Closing balance 1,955.69 -
Recelvahles
Trade receivablas (refer nole 8} 1,861.36 937.98
Less: Allawance for expecled credil loss - -
Net recelvables 1,863.36 937.598
25, Other Income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Export incentive 4101 32.80
Interest income from banks 66.17 20.66
Farelgn exchanga gains (nat) 13.94 103.22
Liabilities written back 6.43 -
Miscellanaous income N 1.08
127.55 158,66
26A Cost of materlals consumed
Parllculars For tha year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inveniory at the beginning of the year 785,04 66.91
Add: purchases during tha yaar 2,850,30 i.303.12
Less; inventory at the end of the year 1,885.23 785,34
1,750.41 584,69
Less: ameunls capilalised towards qualifying assets in lrial run production ransferred from inventory {115.00) {101.68)
1,635.41 483.01
268 Change in inventories of finished goods, work-In-progress and traded goods
Partlculars Forthe year anded  For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Invantorias al the end of the year

Work-In-prograss 163.26 29,95

Finlzhad goads 276.67 68.04

Inventories at the beglnning of the year

Work-inprogross 2095 24.22

Finished goods 68.84 25.07
(341.14) {49.50}

27. Employee beneflts expense
Partlculars For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 56602 280,78

Contribution fo provident and alher funds 3341 33,05

Staff welfare expensas 38.60 27.28
636.84 341.11
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28.

28,

a0,

30.2

Fi costs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense on:
- cash credil 73.04 18.99
- term loan 168.74 108.84
- borrawing from holding company 37072 245.56
- laase liabilities 074 4.84
- Inlerest on Micre enterprise and small enterprise 108 -
614,29 370,23
Less: amaunls capilalised towards qualifying assets in capilal work-in-progress - {9.72)
614._2_9 368.51
Dapreclation and amortlsation exp
Parliculars For the year anded  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deprecialion and amortisatlon on proparty, plani and equipment and inlangible assels respectively {refer note 4) 260.25 102.24
Depracialion an right of use assets {(refer nole 4) 26.84 26.84
Less : amounds capilalised lowards qualifying assets in capital work-in-progress - {23.84)
287.69 10%
Other exg
Particulars For the year ended  For the year snded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Forwarding expenses 14,33 20.36
Telephone and Intemesl expense 313 203
Tesling fee 383 2.0
Donatton 3.98 -
Rates and laxes 33.50 1.28
Repair and maintenance 45,17 2298
Printing and stationery a8l &80
Travelling and conveyance 1.19 1,90
Lagal and professional fees* 62,25 7500
Fower and fuel 65,52 40,37
Inaurange &.11 273
Bank charges 1247 183
Securily charges 12,07 947
Management suppart charges 31,75 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.50 2,74
311.89 190.40
Note:
* Includes paymenls lo audilars (excluding applicable taxes)
As auditor
- Statutory audil 3.50 3.50
- Reimbursemen of axpanses 0.25 0.25
3,75 375
Detalls of CSR expenditure:
Parttculars 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) Gross amount required o be speni by tha Company during ihe year 3.96 -
(b} Amound speni during the year a.96 -
(i} Constructionf acqulsitlon of any assel - -
(i) On purposes other lhan {i} abave - -
(c) Closing balance io be spent - .
{d) Excass amount spenlan GSR as per Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 - -
(e} Folak of previcus year shortfall - -
() Reason for shartfall M.A M.A
(g} Nature of CSR activities :mlin‘dvg alare for

(This space has been inlentionally left hlank)
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3. Tax expense

Faor the year anded

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a} Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and Joss
Current tax
Curren 1ax on profits for the year 7414 -
Tax relaling 1o earller years 3983
Deferved tax charge
Currenl period 60,75 123.33
Tax credit for the year 174,72 123.33
{b} Reconclllation of effectlve tax rate
Accounting proflt before Income tax T46.54 T36.11
Applicable tax rate 17.16% 17.16%
Tax using statutory income tax rate of 17.16% 128,41 126.42
Impact of earller yaar lax 39.83
Olhers 6.78 {3.09}
income tax reported In statement of profit and lass 174.72 12331

{c} Changes In daferred tax assets and llabilities from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024;
Particulars Opening balance as  Recognlsed In profit  Recognised In other Balance as at
on 1 Aprll 2023 or loss comprehenslve income 31 March 2024
Deferred tax asset! {liability} arising on account of
Diffgrencas balween accounting and ax bases of property, plant and (114.27) (51.92) ; (166.19)
equipment
Brought farward losses 6.65 (6.65) - -
Preliminary expenditure 0.54 (0.27) - 0.27
Gratulty, leave himent & Banus 1.81 .25 - 5.08
Lease liabllities & Right of use assal 7.80 {5.15) - 265
{97.47) {80.75) - {158.22)
Changes In defemed fax is and Jiabllities from 1 April 2022 ta 31 March 2023
Partlculars Opening balance as Recognised In profit  Recognised in ather Balance as at
pening hia ancea ar lass comprehansive Incoms 31 March 2023
an 1 Aprll 2022
Deferrod lax asset! {llabllity} arlsing on account of
Diﬂgrencss balwaen accounling and tax bases of properly, plani and 1161} (102.66) . (14.27)
equipment
Brought forward logsas 35,89 (29.34) - 6.65
Preliminary expendiure 0.81 {0.27} - 0.54
Graluity and leave encashment 0.18 1.63 1.1
Lease liabilities & Right of use assat 0,49 7.34 7.00
: 25.88 (123,33} . {97.47)

32, Earnings per shara (EPS)

The calculation of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average numbers aof equily shares outsianding for purpose of basicidlivled garning per share

calculalion are aa follows-
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profiti{loss) after tax 568.03 512,93
Mominal value of aquity share (Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Total number of squlty sharas outstanding at the baginning af the year 30,00,000 30,00,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding al the end of the year 30,00,000 30,00,000
Walghtad average numbaer of equity shares for basic/diluted sarnings per share 30,00,000 30,00,000
1) Basic earning per equily share of Rs, 10 each {In Rs.} 18.93 2043
18.93 20,43

2) Dilulad eaming per equity share of Rs, 10 each {in Rs.)

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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23. Employee benefits
Gralulty

The Company has a defined benefit graluity plan. Every employee is enlilled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, The liabilily of Gratuity is

recognlzed on the basis of actuarial valualion.

Salary Increases alse increase the liability.

Actual salary Increases will increase the plan's liability. Increase In salary increase rate assumplfon in future valuations will

Discount rale

Reduction in discount rale in subsequent valuations can Increase the plan’s liability.

Mortalily & disabllity

Actual dealhs and disabilily cases proving lower or higher ihan assumed in the vatkiation can impacl the liabilitles,

Actusl withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

Withdrawals valuations can Impaci plan’s liabilily.
Amounts recognlsed In the balance sheet: Gompensaled Absences Gratulty
Partlculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liabilities 0.37 a1 0.04 002
Non-current liabililies 4.39 213 19.52 8.3
Galn recognised In other comprehenslve Income: Compensated Absences Gralulty
Particulars 31 March 2024 3 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Acluarial gainf{loss) on defined benefil obligalicns - ' -
(Loss)Gain recognised in other comprehensive income {4.93) {1.95} 0.25 {0.45}
Expenses recognised In slat t of profit and loss Compensated Absences Gratulty
Particulars 3 March 2024 3 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Currenl service cosl 2,865 1.64 10.97 B.92
Interest cost 0.17] 0.01 0.52 0.06
Cost recognised during the year 312 1.66 11.50 6.58
Movement In the labillty recognised In the balance shest Is as under: Compensated Absences Gratulty
Partlculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of deflned bensfit obligation at the beginalng of tha year 224 019 8.32 0.89
Currenl service cosl 2,86 1.64 1097 692
Inlerest cost 0.17] 0.04 0.62 0.06
Actuarial lossfigain) 4,93 1.95 {0.35) 045
Benefits paid {5.53) {1.55) - -
Prasent value of deflned benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.76 2.4 19,56 8.32
{a} For determination of the llabllity of the Company the following actuarlal assumptions were used:
Compensated Absences Gratulty
Partlculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Discount rale 7.25% 7.50% 7.25% 7.50%
Salary escatation rale 10.00% 8.00% 10.00% 8.00%
Retirement age (years) B0 Years &0 Years 60 Years €0 Years
Withdrawal rate 10% PA 5% PA 104 PA 5% PA|
Morlalily rales inclusive of provision for disability -100%: of 1ALM (2012 — 14)
{b) Maturity profile of discounted defined beneflt obllgation: Compensated Absences Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 year 0.37 0.11 0.04 0.02
2 year 0.34 0.10 0.01 a.00
3 year 0.29 0.09 .10 000
4 year 0.24 0.08 0.22 o.04
5 year 0.21 0.08 015 009
8 year 3.31 1.77 19.06 B.12
Sensltivity analysls for gratulty llabllity: Compensated Absences Gratulty
Partlculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
a) impacl of the change In discount rate
Present value of abligation al the end of the year 4.76 224 19.56 .32
Impact due 1o increase of 1.00 % {0.44) (0.30) (1.83) {1.10}
Impact due 1o decrease of 1.00 % 0.54 0.36 2.21 1.38
tb} Impact of the change In salary Increase
Present value of obligation al the end of fhe year 4.76 2.24 19.56 832
Impact due o increase of 1.00 % 0.52 035 243 1.36
Impact due {o decreass of 1.00 % {0.44) (0.30) (1.80)] {1.10}
c) Impact of the change In withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation al the end of the year 476 224 19.58 8.32
Impact due 1o increase of 1.00 % {0.09) (0.02) (1.04) {0.39}
Impact due lo decrease of 1,00 % 0.12 0.01 1.18 0.42

Sensilivitles as to rate of Inflation, rale of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensfons before relirement and life axpeclancy are not applivable being a lump sum

henefii on relirement

Eifact of the defined benafit plan on the Company's future cash flows:
Expecied contribulion dwring the nexl anrwal peried:

The company's best estimate of conlribulion during the next financial year approximates 1o Rs. 17.58 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 9.17 lakhs}

Defined contrbutlon plan:

Coniribulion to definad condribution plans, recognised as an expense for the year is as under:
Employer's confribullon te provident and other funds Rs, 33.41 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 33.05 lakhs).

34. Segment Information

The Company operales in a single reporlable segment e, "Manufaclwing of products®, for Ihe purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operaling Segment”, is considered to be the only

reporiable business segmenl. /QHAND 7S
fal ra

Partlculars

Quislde Indla

/&V \q"{_\ Indla
Revanue =, Oy

1,.337.08

2,426.89

Revenue from major customers: * —
Revenue of Rs, 3,754.72 lakhs is dé E;; from four cust

. who individually accounled for §0% or more of the Iolal revenue of the Company.
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35, Finanelal instrumants risk

Fi \al risk t ohlactivas and pollel
The Company Is exposad Lo vardous risks in relation 1o f ial Insl ts. The main typas of financial risks are markel risk, cradil dsk and liquidity risk.

The g % af the Comy flors and ges tha financial fisks relating to Ihe oparations of tha Company on a canlinuous basis. The Company does nol engage in tha
() Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the falr valus of fulure cash lows of a al ins i will A b of ¢t In marke1 prices. The Company is exposad 1o markel sk
thraugh ite usa of financial Instruments and speclfically 1o Interest rate risk, Forelgn currency sk and commodity fsk which result from its operating, ing and fl Ing
activilles.

(a) Interest rats risk

Interes| rate i3k I3 tha rsk ihal thae feir value or fulure cash flows c-f a financial Inst twill te b of changes In markel Inlerest rales. Tha Company |s exposed 10
changas in markel inleresi rates as some L ings are al variabl rales,

The followlng table llustrales lhe aenslll\dly of ploﬂl and equilty lo a reasonably possible change (n interest rates af +f- 1%. These changes are consldered 1o ba reasonably
posslble based on t. The calculallons are based on a change in the averags market Interes! rale for ach period, and the financlal Insirumanls held al
each raporling dala that are sensilhra lo ¢hangas In inlerest ratas. All other variables ara held conslant.

The exposura of Company's borowing and inlarest rale al repariing perlod as following:

Borrowlngs
Parliculars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Non current Current Non current Gurrent

(Sacured - af amortised cosl)
Term loan {refer note 17a & 17b) 995.43 478.68 1.261.16 420.42
Cash credit Limlt from bank - 863.00 - 381,22

58643 1,961.68 126116 801.64
1% Increase In basis poinis . 996 1362 12.61 8.02
1% decreasa In basis pok#s (9.96) {13.62} {1261 {8.02)

{b} Forelgn currency rizk

Foraign curesncy risk is tha fisk thal tha fair value or fulure cash Rows of an exposure will fuctuate because of changes in forelgn exchanga rales. The functional currancy of the
Gompany is Euro. Mast of the Company's transactions are camied out in Euro. Exposures lo currency exchange rates malnly arise from tha Company's averseas purchases, which
Is primarily denominaled in EURQ,

The Company has limilad exp to foreign ¥ risk and oulslanding loreign o Y oD ar& not being hadged against ad y Muctuali
The unhedgad foralgn currency exposure |s a5 follows :
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount of Amount of
Particulars recelvablel{paya | A t In Rs. | recelvablafipayabta) A tin Rs.
ble) In Foralgn {lakhs) In Forelgn surrancy {lakhs}
currensy {lakhs) {lakhs)
Trada Racalvables
EURO-Receivable 19,48 4,752.35 10.21 913.01
Trade Payables
EURO-Payable {5.0%) {450.60) (.72} {152.75)
USD-Payable - - (0.43) {36.29)
FCNR- Borrowing
EURO-Payabls 6.00 539,64 - -
Forelgn currency sensliivily on unhedged exposure
‘The foltowing table illusirates the lareign currency sensiivity of prafit and equity with regards to the Company’s fi ial assets and financial liabililias considering ‘alt other things
belng equal’ and ignoring the impact of jon. 1L a +/- 1% change of tha Fure/USD exchange rate for the year endad at 31 March 2024, Thess ara the sensiivily rates
used when ref g forelgn y I Iy 1o tha key 1p and p 's aof |he ly possible changes In the
forelgn exchanga vates. The senslllvlly dysls Includes anly « ding loralgn ¥ inated monelary ltams at end of each period repored upon A posllve number
indicales an increase in profil or equily and vice-versa,
1% 1 fd In fareikm exchanga rates will have Ihe fellowing impact on profil beforatax:
Impact on profit befora tax
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Increase by 1 % in exchange rate 18.41 2.23
D by 1 % In exchange rale {18.41) (7.2
(o] Commodity price risk
The company can be alfecied by Lhe price volatility of cartaln dilies, its operaling aclivilies require the ongalng purchase of par hypolube and theret quire a conling
aupply. In of view valalility of per hypolube the company also tos inlo vash d purchase contracl
Commodity prica sansitivity
The following lables shows the sffact of price changs In hypotube,
Parficul change In yaarty averag offect on profit bafore lax affect on aquity
31 March 2024
Ballon +1% 1% (1.76) 1.76 {1.78) 1.76
Hypotube +1% 1% {10.25) 10.25 {10.25) 10.25
Particulars change In yearly average effecl on proilt befora lax effect an equlty
31 March 2023
Ballon +1% 1% {1.13) 1.13 {1.13) 1.13

Hypotube +1% 1% {0.05) 0.95 {0.95) 0.35
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35, Financlal instraments risk {cont'd)

{li} Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that a ¢ parly fils o discharge an cbligation to the Company, The Comp Is operating through a network of disiributors and ather dlslribullon partnars
based el differemt locations. The Compeny is exposed to Ihis risk for varlous f) la) Inslr for pla recalvables from cust The Company’s ¥ to
credi sk Is dmited 1o 1he camying amounl of financial assels racognised at end of each reporting period, as summanised below;

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other financlal assels €60.09 231.21
Trade recelvables (excluding recelvabla 1,353.78 369.27
(Cash and cash equivalents 59,28 180.73
Other bank balances 900,00 466.94
Loans 0,64 1.15
The Company conlinuously monitors receivables and defaults of customers and other parlies, and incorporales this infl lion Inlo Its credit risk controls.
The credil risk for cash and cash equivalents, albar bank bal s Idered negligible, since Lhe counlarpaniies are reputable banks and risk for other financial assal & loans is

alzo consldared as negligible as counlerpariies are repulatle pariles.
{iy Liquidity sk

Liquidity risk Is tha rigk thal the Company will encounter difficully n masling the obligatlons assoclated with lis financlal lizbllites thal are seitled by dellvering cash or another
financial assel. Tha Company's approach to managing lquldily is lo ensure as far as possible, thal il will hava sufficlent liquidily 1o meet lls liabilitles when thay are dua.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s financlal liablliies have conlractual maturties as summarnised below:

Az at 31 March 2024 Less than 1year 1to5years  Mors than 5 years Taotal

Bomowings 1,901.32 5,5086.44 - 7.487.76
Lease liabilties 20.00 - - 20.00
Trada payables 593.87 - - 593.87
Olher Ananclal llatilites 3689.19 - - 399.1¢
Total 2,904.38 5,506 44 - 8,490.682
Az at 31 March 2023 Less than 1year 1to5years  More than 5 years Tetal

Borrowings 801.64 5,245,116 - 6,046.80
Lease liabilities 2598 53.27 - 79.25
Trade payables 339.45 - - 338,45
Other financial Eabililies 280.55 - - 260,55
Total 1,426,62 5,295.43 - 6,725,05

346. Gapltal management
For the purpase of the Company's capltal management, capital Includes issued equily capilal, securlles premium and all other equity reserves atiributabla 1o the aquily

hokiers. The Company Includes within nol det, borrowlngs less cash amd cash equivatents, other bank balances and currenl investments. The primary cbjeciive of the
Coampany's capilal g tis 1o imise tha shareholder value, The Company is not subjact lo any extemally imposed capilal requirements.
Parilculars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Barrowings 748776 6,046.80
Lease liabllities 12.90 79.25
Interesl accrued and due on barrowings 34031 21.01
Less : Cash and cash equivalenls {59.29) {180.73)
Nat dabt 7,708.77 6,166,33
Tolal capital 1,354.79 787,54
Capilal 2and nel debt 8,142.56 6,953.87

85.2% 83.7%
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37. Related party disclosure
In accordance with the requirernents of Ind AS 24, 'Related Party Disclosures', the names of the relaled parly where control exists/able to exercise significant influence
along with the transactions and year-end balances with them as idenlified and cerlified by the management are given below:

Names of related partles and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists

Name of the related party

Ultimate Holding Company

EGP Il Pte. Lid.

Holding Company
Integiis Health Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary
Translumina Therapeutics LLP
Translumina GmbH

Subsldlaries of Fellow subsidlary
Blue Medical Devices BV (w.e.k. 18 June 2023)

Name of the related party
- Key Management Persannel (KMP")
Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh, Direclor
Mr. Vishal Sharma, Director
Mr. Vishal Goenka, Diraclor
Mr. Indranil Mukhevjee, Director

The followling transact! were carrled out with related parties in the ordinary course of business

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Integrls Health Private Limited
Corporate guaraniee received 3,419.00 2,800.00
Corporate guaranfee given 11,500,00 -
Non-current borrowings recelived 3,605.00 1,656.00
Interest expense on borrowings 370.72 245.56
Translumina Therapeutics LLP
Interest on lease labiliies 0.75 4,84
Rent expenses 30.00 30,00
Electricity expenses 16.86 17.66
Cross charge -salary 31.75 12,46
Sale of products 1,337.08 152,78
Purchase of goods 210.08 -
Corporale guaraniee received 3,419.00 -
Translumina GMBH
Sale of producls 578.02 568.93
Purchase of goads 110.04 -
Blue Medical Devices B.V,
Purchase of goods 71.92 -

The following balances were outstanding as at with related parties in the ordinary course of husiness

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Integris Health Private Limited

Non-curren! borrowings 4,590.01 3,8684.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 333.65 224,00
Corporale guarantee received 3,419.00 5,800.00
Corporate guarantee given 11,500,00
Translumina Therapeutics LLP
Other receivable - 100.23
Lease liabilities 20,00 79.25
Trade payables 47.71 75.38
Trade receivables 121.27 24,97
Corporale Guarantee received 3,419.00 -
Translumina GMBH
Trade receivables 388.31 523,76
Trade payables 104.80 -
Blue Medical Devices B.V,

4,49 -

Trade Payables

Mote : refer note 17(d) for details of corporate or,

ranlees given and properiies mortgaged by the related parties on behalf of the Company.
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38, Contingent frabifittes and commitments

a} Commitments

Particluars Ag at 31 March 2024 As al 31 March 2023
Eslimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capltal account and not pravided for (net

of capilal advances) 154,59 274,57

Export obligaticn on account of concessional rale of custom duly availed under EPCG license under
scheme on impor of capilal goods 4,749.60 6,211.40

b} Contingent llabliltles

Partlcluars As al 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Contlngent liabilities, nol acknowledged as debt,
Corporale guarantees givan on behalf of holding Company { Refer Nole 27) 11,500,00

Thera are no conlingend kabililies (under litigation) nol acknowladged as debl as al 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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for the year ended 31 March 2024

38. Detalis of dues to micro enterprises and small enlarpeises as dafl

d under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars As at As at

34 March 2024 31 Marsh 2023
Principal amouni dua fo supplers under MSMED Acl 1049 1862
Inierest accruad and due to supplisrs undsr MSIMED Acl on the above amount Inleres] dua Lherecn 088 -
Payment made to supphiers {other Ihan inleres!} beyond sppointad day during the year - -
Interest pald 1o suppllers under MSMED Act - -
Tha amaunt of furthar interesi remaining dus and payabla aven In lhe succeading years, unlil such date when Lhe - -
Interest dus and payabla lo supplers under MSMED Acl lowards paymients akeady made 02 -
Interest accruad and remaining unpald &l tha end af the accounling year - -
Tha amaunl of further interes| remaining dus and payabla aven in Ihe succesding years, unll such date when ke 108 -
The abova has baen detammined i the extent such parles have besn identified on the basls of inf lable with Ihe Company. This has baen relled upon by the
audtors,

40, Qther slalutory Informatlens

{#) The Company do not have any B | property, whare any p ding has baen Inilialed or panding agalnst the Company for hakding any Benami proparly,

(T} Tha Company has not iraded of lnvesied In Crypto curency or Viruel Cumrency during the financlal yaar.

(IR) The Company has not been daclared a with) dafaukter by any bank or financial Institution or olher lender {as defined under the Companles Acl, 2013} or consortlum Lhereof,
i wiih Lhe guidaines on wilful defaullers kaved by lhe Reserve Bank of Indla.

{iv) The Company da nol hava any lransaclions with siruck off companies under Seciion 248 of the Companiss Act, 2013 or Seclion 560 of Companles Act, 1956,

J wilk Ragh of C l25 (ROC) beyond the slatulory period.
ded funds to any other person or entily, including forelgn entitiea (I dianes) vAth the und:

(¥} The Company do nal have any charges ar salisfaciion which Is yal Lo be regl
{vi) Tha Campany has nol ad d af loanad or §
shalk

&) direclly or indirecliy lend or Invast in olber persons or entilies ienlified in any manner whaisosver by or an behalf of ihe Company {Uliimata B ies)

ding thal Ihe it diary

or

b} provide any guarantes, securily or the ki ta ar on behalf of the Uimata Baneficlaras.
{vil) The Company has hal recelved any fund rom any person or enlily, inchiding loralgn entitles {Funding Fany} with the understanding (wheih ded In wailing or otherwize) lhat
the Company shall :

a] divecily or indirecily lend or invest in ather persons or antilles ldeniified in any mannar whatsosvear by or an behalf of the Funding Party (Ukimate Beneficlaries), of

) provide any guacantae, secwrily or the Bke to or on behalf of the Ukimale Baneficianas.
{vi) The Company has not any such Transaciion which Is not recorded In the hooks of accounls thal has been surrenderad or disciosed as Incame during the year In the tax
assessments under the Incoma Tax Acl, 1961 {such as, search of survey ar any ather ralevant provisions af he Incoma Tax Acl, 1961,

41, Flnanclal Ratios:

The Company's abjeciive when kg caphtal ks 10 malntaln posiive cash flow posiilon. The Company's stralegy ks 1o malnlaln & yeazonable cumrent ratio. The cumenl rallo is as

follows: .

[Farticulars Numaratar Denominator 31 March 2024 |31 March 2023 % Varlanca R foy varfance |
Cumemt rallc decreased by 30%)
during the ysar as ihare ks hcrease)

Current rallo [Cumrant apsets Current (tablliies 123 1,86 -34%|In curent Babllty In FY 2033-24 as
compared to previaus year,

Railos required 10 ha disclosed as per schedubs lll

Parllcul Humaralol T Dapominator 3 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 % Vardance Reasan for varlanca
Totel Debt= (Gurrenl and Hon| Shoreholders” eauty { e Ay R”:’,';,dﬁ'::;’:: o

Dabl-equily ralln curanl barowings + leass] 554 768 -28%

Jiabint share caplial + Othar sharehaler's aquity a3 compared 1o}
labilty) |Barawings In F 2023-24.
Eamings avellable for dabl
serdeca = {Profl before)
exceplional Cebt  Service=Finance
Debl cervica ilem and Lax + finance 1 2,60 320 -18% | Mot Apphcable
for the yaar
and
Dacrease i relum on equily ks dug|

Met Profils aler taxes -|Awverage  Shareholdar's) _ 1o i [ e sharehold

Relum on eqully ratle Preforance Dividend {if any) |Equily 0.53 127 0% Iud a3 compared lo  eamings

avallable for sharehaiders.
Cosl ‘.ﬂ.g sold= {Cost o Average Irwantary|
ralio M Changes In Inwventories off. ~ = ,\h':n Opening 081 087 7% | Mot Applicable
finlshad goods and workdn| yrlosing
|progress) -
Ayarage Accounts
Trade receivables Hal Credil Sakes = R fvable = {Avarage of|
wmover rallo fram operalion paining and and closing| 249 348 2% Mol Applicable
Irada recatvables)

Trade payables Mal Credil Purchases =|

naver ratio Purchases during the year Avarage Trade Poyables 811 6.63 8% |Not Applicable
Incregse In Met coplal lumover ralio]
by 41%, es there is increase in

- ‘Warking Caphial = { Talal soles durlng the cument FY 2023-24)

Mol capkallumover ot Sakes = Revenue ToMlouremt assets - Tola a4 181 108% Jwitkch Is. mejorly due 1o starting o

ralie operalions cument Kabiites) production (n THL-2 plnt for full
year ea compared lo lasl year as ||
'was recenlly slaned in March-23,
Dacrease i Nel profit ralie by 40%,

Hel profit ratie el Prodit for the year Revanue from cperallon 0,15 Q.30 -50%|Due o merease o cosl of goods|
aold and alher expenses

[Ralum on capital Ilti;gng before Intarest and Capiia Empl 0.1 018 7% | ot Apphcabta

Ralum on Investment NA NA A NA -
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42, The Mintstry af Comporale Alairs (MCA) has p sd 3 nEeW recu ior des under the provise Lo Rule 3(1) of tha Companies {(Accounis) Rules, 2014, inserled by the
G ins (A is ) Aymandh Rulag 2021 ' which usas iy for ILs books of s, shall only usa such accounting software

which has a leature of recording audit tral of each and avery rangaclion, crealing an adil log of sach change made in Ihe booka of accounl along wilh tha date when such changes
wets made and ensuring Lhat the aud|l Ireil cannol be disabled. The naw raqusement is applinabla wilh affect from Lhe fnancial year beginning on 1 Apnl 2023,

Tha € uses [ Tgr mak of books of During the cumant year, the eudil rall {adit log) festure for any direcl changes made al iha database
Jovel was not anabisd for stch accounting softwars. However, the audi wall {sdi fog) al Ihe applicall lavel for tha k ity Wire Ing for all relevanl ransactions
recorcad in the softvare.

&3, Per tranafar pricing leglslation under seclion 92-02F of the Income Tax Acl 1261, Lhe LLP In required lo wse canlain spacific melhods i computing amm's fengih price of ntemalionz!
with laled Pt and e o In this respect. The teglsiations reguire thal such informaton and documantalion fo be
coptamporaneous in nslwe. Yhe LLP hasg inled p for conducling the Transior Pricing Study jo ine whalher the lona wilth
sntarprines ungdoniakie during ihe financal mrmmm'm‘shngﬁbnﬁu‘.mupbhmmssot condicing @ transfer pricing study for the curenl inancial peviod and
axpacts such reconds to be In exstence Lalest by the due dale as raquirsd by law. Hiwever, i the opinion of tha management the updole would nol have a malerial Impact on thess
[ lah A dingly, Ihesa financial slatemenls do nal incude amy adusimenis for the: trangfler pricing implications, if any.

44, Previous year figures have baen presented fof Ihe purmpose of compariaon and have been regrouy ified wh

This Iz the sumimary of matsial accounting policien and other sxplanatory information miemed 10 In our repor of sven dale.
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